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WELCOME

In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) we submit our
Draft Completion Report to the Audit Committee setting out certain matters
relating to the audit for the year ended 31 March 2020 that we are required
to bring to your attention.
It summarises the results of completing the planned audit approach,
specific audit findings and areas requiring further discussion and/or the
attention of the Audit Committee. At the completion stage of the audit it is
essential that we engage with the Audit Committee on the results of audit
work on key risk areas, including significant estimates and judgements made
by Management, critical accounting policies, any significant deficiencies in
internal controls, and the presentation and disclosure in the financial
statements.
We discussed these matters with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 14
September 2020, and received your input. This report has be finalised to
reflect that discussion and completion of the audit procedures and reissued
at the point we signed the group financial statements.

Kyla Bellingall
Partner
t: 0121 265 7220
m: 07786198735
e: kyla.bellingall@bdo.co.uk
Anthony McMellon
Manager
t: 0121 352 6206
m: 07929 047342
e: anthony.mcmellon@bdo.co.uk

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank the Management and
staff of the Group for the co-operation and assistance provided during the
audit. We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit and
all requested explanations and documents were provided in a timely manner.

Kyla Bellingall
23 September 2020

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements. This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Board and should not be shown to any other person without our express permission in writing. In preparing this
report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see the appendices.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

OVERVIEW
Executive summary
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This summary provides an overview
of the audit matters that we believe
are important to the Audit
Committee in reviewing the results
of the audit of the financial
statements for the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
It is also intended to promote
effective communication and
discussion and to ensure that the
results of the audit appropriately
incorporate input from those
charged with governance.
Changes to audit approach from
that communicated in our audit
strategy
Due to Covid-19 we have had to
amend our audit approach in a
number of ways:
•

an element of the audit was
performed remotely

•

we performed additional work to
confirm that the design and
implementation of control
activities related to the audit
remained robust once your team
commenced working remotely

•

additional audit risks were
identified and necessary
procedures added to our audit
plan – this is covered in more
detail on page 6.

Audit report
Despite the changes to our approach
our audit work is complete and we
are issuing our audit opinion on the
Group’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020 in line
with the agreed timetable.

Audit scope
Our approach was designed to
ensure we obtained the required
level of assurance across the
components of the group in
accordance with ISA (UK) 600
(Audits of Group Financial
Statements). This objective
has been achieved.

In this uncertain environment where
business continuity plans have been
activated, forecasting future cash
flows with any degree of certainty is
challenging. You have therefore
made detailed reference to this
uncertainty in your description of
estimates and judgments and your
narrative reports.
No restrictions were placed on
our work.
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THE NUMBERS
Executive summary
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Final Materiality

Unadjusted audit differences

Financial reporting

Introduction

Group Financial Statement
Materiality was determined based on
total assets and Specific Materiality
was determined based on adjusted
operating profit (as defined in your
strictest loan covenant).

There are no unadjusted audit
difference. All adjustments
identified have been adjusted by
management.

•

Executive summary
Overview
The numbers
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices

Changes were made to planning
materiality as a result of updating
for the final position at year end.

•

Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

•

CLEARLY TRIVIAL
£90k

We have not identified any noncompliance with group
accounting policies or applicable
accounting framework.
No significant accounting policy
changes have been identified
impacting the current year.
Going Concern disclosures have
been amended to adequately
reflect the current uncertainty in
cash flow forecasting. See page
12.

Other matters that require
discussion or confirmation
•

Follow up of control deficiency
identified in relation to logical
access controls over the
IT applications are detailed on
page 23.

•

Confirmation on fraud,
contingent liabilities and
subsequent events.

•

Letter of Representation.

Independence
We confirm that the firm and its
partners and staff involved in the
audit remain independent of the
Company and Group in accordance
with the FRC's Ethical Standard.

2020
MATERIALITY

£4,500k
Unadjusted differences vs. materiality

0%
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AUDIT RISKS

OVERVIEW

Executive summary

As identified in our audit planning report dated March 2020 we assessed the most significant risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. These
include those risks which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit and the directing of the efforts of the
engagement team. In this uncertain environment where business continuity plans have been activated due to Covid-19, forecasting future cash flows with
any degree of certainty is challenging; we have therefore added an additional risk in relation to Going Concern.

Audit risks

Matters that we have identified as being Key Audit Matters (KAMs) will be referred to in our report on the financial statements.

Overview

The risks are summarised in the table below

Contents
Introduction

Audit risks
Accounting practices
Control environment

Significant Audit Risk
Identified at Planning

Key Audit
Matter

Significant Management
Judgement Involved

Use of Experts
Required

Error
Identified

Control Findings to
be reported in
Management letter

Specific
Letter of
Representation
Point

Income/revenue recognition

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

Management override

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes, including
actuarial
assumptions

Cost apportionment on
developments

No

Yes

No

No

No

No

Impairment of properties
developed for sale

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

Going concern

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Yes

Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

Areas requiring your attention
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AUDIT RISKS

OVERVIEW
Audit risks by entity
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Significant Audit Risk

Income/revenue
recognition

Management override

Cost apportionment
on developments

Impairment of
properties developed
for sale

Going concern

Audit risks

Group

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

Audit risks

Futures Housing Group

x

ü

x

x

ü

Futures Homeway Limited

ü

ü

x

x

ü

Futures Homescape Limited

ü

ü

ü

x

ü

Five Doorways Homes Limited

x

ü

x

x

ü

Limehouse Developments
Limited

ü

ü

x

ü

ü

Futures Greenscape Limited

ü

ü

x

x

ü

Futures Finance Limited

x

ü

x

x

ü

Futures Treasury PLC

x

ü

x

x

ü

Overview
Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments
Impairment of properties
developed for sale
Going concern
Going concern
Going concern
Investment Properties valuation
Accounting practices
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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INCOME/REVENUE RECOGNITION

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
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Audit risks
Overview
Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls

Under International
Standard on Auditing 240
“The auditor’s
responsibility to consider
fraud in an audit of
financial statements”
there is an assumption
that revenue recognition
is a fraud risk.

Cost apportionment on
developments
Impairment of properties
developed for sale

Risk description

Results

Contract income

Contract income

Income from contracts should be recognised in line
with the terms of the contract and is therefore subject
to management judgement; we therefore consider this
a significant risk for those entities providing services
either externally or to other group entities in line with
contracts.

We have compared the revenue recognised for a
sample of contracts to the contract terms and
conditions to confirm it has been recognised on an
appropriate basis and within the correct accounting
period.

Property sales
For proceeds on sale of properties including first
tranche shared ownership properties and outright sales
a risk exists relating to the recognition of revenue in
the correct period. A slowdown in property
completions may result in sales being recognised when
anticipated rather than when legally completed.

We have reviewed the disclosures in relation to your
accounting policies and key judgments and estimates in
this area.
Property Sales
We have tested the processes in place to ensure
income from property sales is recorded accurately and
completely. For example, a sample of first tranche
sales in the year have been agreed back to completion
statements and bank receipts. Cut off testing has been
performed to confirm that sales were recognised in the
correct accounting period.

Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

No

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

No

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

We have tested a detailed sample of market rent
transactions to rental agreements and evidence of
receipt of income.

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Discussion and conclusion

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

No

Testing was completed satisfactorily.

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

No

Market rents
Market rents are potentially subject to more regular
reviews and changes to rent levels than social housing
rents, and as such we consider that are higher risk that
those rentals relating to social housing lettings.

Futures Housing Group | Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
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ISA (UK) 240 presumes
that management is in a
unique position to
perpetrate fraud.

Audit risks
Overview
Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments

Risk description

Results

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK) 240,
there is a presumed significant risk of management
override of the system of internal controls.

We obtained a complete list of journals and, using
information gathered during the audit and our
understanding of the entity we target tested those
journals and adjustments that we considered may be
inappropriate or unusual. We did this using our data
analytics tool, Advantage.

The primary responsibility for the detection of fraud
rests with Management. Their role in the detection of
fraud is an extension of their role in preventing
fraudulent activity. They are responsible for
establishing a sound system of internal control
designed to support the achievement of departmental
policies, aims and objectives and to manage the risks
facing the organisation; this includes the risk of fraud.
Details

Impairment of properties
developed for sale

Our understanding is that the most likely areas where
management override could take place are the posting
of journals and in the judgements involved in
accounting estimates within the financial statements.

We also reviewed material journals and transactions
outside of what is considered the normal course of
business.
We reviewed significant accounting estimates and
judgements to ensure they were appropriate. This
included:
•

Impairment assessments for housing properties

•

the Useful Economic Life (UEL) of components and
the amortisation of social housing grant

No

•

Capitalisation of property development costs

Significant management
judgement

Yes

•

The actuarial assumptions used in the Local
Government pension valuations (see pages 17).

Control environment

Use of experts

Yes

No issues were identified as a result of our work.

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Discussion and conclusion

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

No

Nothing was identified through our work on journals or
accounting estimates that we need to bring to your
attention. Testing was completed satisfactorily.

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

Yes

Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

Investment Properties valuation
Accounting practices
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COST APPORTIONMENT ON DEVELOPMENTS

Contents

Risk description

Results

Introduction

Costs incurred in developing schemes with multiple
units and multiple tenure types need to be apportioned
on an appropriate and consistent basis. Where there
are shared ownership units those costs must be further
apportioned between the first tranche and retained
equity elements.

We have selected a sample of costs incurred in
developing schemes during 2019/20 and,

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Overview

Due to the volume of developments and the level of
judgement in estimating costs apportionments we
consider this a significant risk.

Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments
Impairment of properties
developed for sale
Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

No

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

Yes

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

No

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

No

There is a risk around profit recognition via cost
apportionment between first tranche and the retained
equity on shared ownership plots sold, and between
units within a development scheme, ensuring that costs
are apportioned on an appropriate and consistent
basis.

•

Agreed the costs to suitable supporting evidence

•

Checked that the split of costs between rental,
shared ownership and outright sale properties
within assets under construction have been
apportioned on an appropriate and consistent basis.

We have reviewed the disclosures in relation to your
accounting policies and key judgments and estimates in
this area.
Discussion and conclusion
Testing was completed satisfactorily.

FHW, FHL and 5D, together with the consolidated
group, are expected to have material levels of
development expenditure in 2019/20.
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IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTIES DEVELOPED FOR SALE

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Overview
Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments
Impairment of properties
developed for sale

Due to the volume of
property under
construction and the
level of judgement
involved in estimating
both sales proceeds and
costs to complete we
consider there is a
significant risk that the
carrying amount of
properties developed for
sale is misstated.

Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

Yes

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

Yes

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

No

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

Yes

Risk description

Results

Properties developed for sale, including shared
ownership first tranches and properties developed for
outright sale, must be held at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (sales proceeds less costs to sell and
costs to complete).

We obtained management’s assessment of the net
realisable value of properties developed for sale and

The November 2019 Market data showed that the
number of market sale properties that were unsold by
housing associations for more than six months at the
end of September had increased by 59% when
compared with the number recorded in June, with an
increase in units not sold for over 6 months in the same
period.
Despite this a total of 34,827 shared ownership homes
are expected to be completed over the next 18 months
by Housing providers, an increase of 59% on the 21,842
homes completed in the 18 months to September.
Due to the volume of properties under construction
within LHD relative to the size of the entity and the
level of judgement involved in estimating both sales
proceeds and costs to complete we consider there is a
significant risk that the carrying amount of properties
developed for sale is misstated.
Based on the information available during our planning
work, only LHD is expected to have material levels of
properties developed for outright sale in 2019/20.
Properties held for sale as at September were £3m
which is material to LHD and Group.
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•

for a sample of expected proceeds we agreed the
amounts involved to supporting documentation or
compared the expected proceeds to similar
developments in the same locality.

•

for a sample of properties under development, we
obtained details of the expected costs to complete
from the scheme budget for that development and
agreed the budgeted contracted cost of the
development to the latest contract documentation.
We compared the incurred expenditure to the
estimated amount to ensure that the cost to
complete estimate reflects actual costs.

We also assessed the accuracy of cost forecasting by
looking at outturn costs compared to budget on
schemes that completed in the year.
Discussion and conclusion
From our review we have not identified a significant
decrease in the value of properties developed for sale
and a review of market forecasts from 3 valuers shows
them forecasting 0-10% reductions in prices once the
market resumes, indicting there is unlikely to be a
material drop in the value of the properties.
Our work identified no misstatements or inappropriate
application of judgement or estimation. Based on our
procedures we noted no exceptions and no evidence
that the carrying amount of properties developed for
sale is materially misstated.
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GOING CONCERN

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks

In an uncertain
environment where
business continuity plans
have been activated,
forecasting future cash
flows with any degree of
certainty is challenging.

Overview

Risk description

Results

The wider impact of Covid-19 is expected to impact
the group’s financial resources. This includes:

We obtained management’s updated report on Going Concern
this included:

•

• Managements assessment of going concern at an entity

•

The potential for impairment charges as a result
of the above

•

Costs such as interest and security hitting the I&E
for sites that have been paused

•

Changes to timing of cash outflows as
development is paused and an emergency only
repairs service is introduced.

Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments

Entity level risk for: as noted

Accordingly, we consider going concern to be a
significant risk for the Group and all of the
subsidiaries.

Group level risk

Yes

Details
Management have made an assessment of going
concern, which includes stress testing of multiple
scenarios. This showed that covenants were only
breached for interest cover, a key covenant metric
for Futures, as a result of the worst case scenario.

Impairment of properties
developed for sale
Going concern
Going concern

Reduced cash inflows due to rising rent arrears:
deferred property sales, including first tranche
and subsequent staircasing

Going concern

Key audit matter

Yes

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

Yes

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

Yes

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

Yes

However, management are happy that the worst case
scenario will not be a reality due to the mitigations
in place, these have been reviewed and are more
than sufficient to ensure that no breach would occur.

level for the group

• Stress testing performed on individual variants and several
multi-variant scenarios

• Reverse stress testing looking at % increase in costs to
cause a going concern issue

• Mitigations available to the group immediately, within 3
months, within 12 months. To mitigate against adverse
conditions highlight in the stress testing.
We performed the following review to confirm the accuracy
and reliability of the information:

• Actual performance in FY19 against the prior period
assessment/budget.

• The suitability of assumptions applied by Management
when producing revised forecasts for FY20 and longer term
budgets.

• Commitments and future development intentions
• Availability of loan finance, amount of available security to
underpin future loan facilities, ability to repay loans when
they fall due

• Stress testing of adverse variations in revenue and
additional unexpected costs

• The appropriateness of sensitivities prepared by

Futures Housing Group | Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

Management and the probability that events trigger a loan
default, covenant breach or loss of funds.
We have also reviewed the disclosures made within the
financial statements around the uncertainties in the estimates
and judgement section and in the narrative reports to ensure
suitable levels of disclosure are being included.
12 | BDO LLP

GOING CONCERN

Contents
Introduction

In an uncertain
environment where
business continuity plans
have been activated,
forecasting future cash
flows with any degree of
certainty is challenging.

Results
Key stress testing assumptions
Assumptions

Base sector
assumptions

Rent arrears

10% increase

5.5%

Overview

Rent collections

3m delay

3m rent free

Income/revenue recognition

Voids

Management override of controls

Property prices

10% reduction

Cost apportionment on
developments

Property sales timing

6m delay

50% reduction*

Repairs/other costs inflation

5-10%

5.25%

Interest rate rise on variable
loans

1-2%

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks

Impairment of properties
developed for sale
Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

Yes

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

Yes

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

Yes

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

Yes

Multi-variant 1

4.3%

1.8%

Multi-variant 2
4.5%

2.8%

1.8%

Above shows BDOs broad assumptions for suitable stress testing for the housing sector as a whole and compares these
against the multi-variant scenarios performed by management.
You will note that the majority are inline with our benchmark and therefore BDO concur that these are suitable.
However Rent arrears and property prices do not appear to be in line. BDO discussed with management and have
made the assessment that due to the inclusion of a voids assumption (not included in BDOs assumptions) the total
income reduction is 9.8% and therefore in line with the 10% noted by BDO and In relation to property prices no
assumption for a reduction was included by management but a general 50% reduction in sales and/or timing has
included and therefore BDO concur that the stress testing is sufficient in this area.
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GOING CONCERN

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks

In an uncertain
environment where
business continuity plans
have been activated,
forecasting future cash
flows with any degree of
certainty is challenging.

Overview
Income/revenue recognition
Management override of controls
Cost apportionment on
developments
Impairment of properties
developed for sale

Results
Covenant compliance
Loan covenant calculations for FY21 and beyond were obtained and agreed back to the latest business plan. We have
recalculated the key interest cover, gearing covenants and Asset cover for FY21 and FY22 with no discrepancies
identified. Headroom is significant in all areas:
Interest
cover

FY21

FY22

Gearing

FY21

FY22

Asset
cover

FY21

FY22

Ratio

173%

168%

Ratio

59%

56%

Ratio

143%

143%

Min.
required

110%

110%

Max

85%

80%

Min.
required

115%

115%

Headroom

£6.2m

£5.8m

Headroom

£95m

£102m

Headroom

£56m

£56m

Cash headroom and Sensitivities
Projected cash flows in FY21 and FY22, including schemes that require further sign off, continues to be positive with
£46m at the end of FY21 and £29m at the end of FY22.

Going concern

Entity level risk for: as noted

Going concern

Group level risk

Yes

Going concern

Key audit matter

Yes

Investment Properties valuation

Significant management
judgement

Yes

Accounting practices
Control environment

Use of experts

No

Audit Report

Unadjusted error

No

Based on our work performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties in relation to the going concern basis
of preparation adopted by Futures Housing group and its subsidiaries.

Independence and fees

Adjusted error

No

Audit work in respect of subsidiary entities is complete and we are satisfied that the entities are a going concern.

Appendices contents

Additional disclosure
required

Yes

Given the high level of judgement, the significant time spent auditing going concern and the potential impact on the
financial statements we consider going concern to be a Key Audit Matter.

Significant Control Findings

No

Letter of Representation
point

Yes

As part of the audit work we have reviewed managements multi-variant scenarios and only one highlights a potential
breach of the interest cover which was the “covid-19 worst case scenario”. We are comfortable that this is highly
improbable and that the business would be well placed to employ mitigating measures to avoid a covenant breach.
Discussion and conclusion
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES VALUATION

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Overview
Income/revenue recognition

Overview
The assumptions feeding through into the Investment properties valuation are based on market conditions and in light of Covid-19 there is a uncertainty as
to the valuation being applied to properties due to a lack of comparable market data.
Discussion:
In light of the current situation and potential economic impacts BDO are aware that valuers are including a Material Uncertainty within their valuation
reports for 31 March 2020 year ends and therefore there is potential for this to result in an emphasis of matter (which is not a qualification) within our
audit report to draw users attention to the uncertainty.

Cost apportionment on
developments

We reviewed the Valuation report and followed up with the valuer as to whether the Material Uncertainty was due to the general market or specific to
Futures Housing Group. The valuer confirmed that the caveat reflected a general point on the market as a whole and the lack of comparative data, rather
than any factors that are specific to Futures.

Impairment of properties
developed for sale

We requested that narrative in relation to the caveat included in the valuation report be included in note 15 to highlight the uncertainty to the users of the
accounts and management note, notwithstanding this, that this is not a material uncertainty in respect of Futures’ financial statement as a whole.

Going concern

In addition the valuation has been derived from market values and conditions that were present at year end, we would therefore expect that some price
suppression is already included within the valuation. In addition a further 16% reduction would be required for the impact to be material to the financial
statements therefore we concur with management that there isn’t a material uncertainty in relation to the investment property valuations.

Management override of controls

Going concern
Going concern
Investment Properties valuation
Accounting practices
Control environment

Conclusion
Based on the disclosure included in the accounts and the consideration above noting it is a general point on the market as a whole and not specific to
Futures we consider the disclosure of the uncertainty in Note 15 is adequate to inform the users of the accounts of any uncertainty and therefore have not
included as an Emphasis of Matter within our audit opinion.

Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Contents

Overview

Introduction

Financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP), including the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Statement of Recommended Practice Accounting by registered social housing providers (Housing
SORP 2018) and the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing from April 2019.

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices

Discussion

Accounting policies

•

Draft one of the financial statements did not include a policy on the measurement of hedge effectiveness. Management amended this in subsequent
drafts.

•

We have not identified any non-compliance with group accounting policies or applicable accounting framework.

Pension scheme valuations
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Matters requiring additional
consideration (2)
Unadjusted disclosure omissions
and improvements
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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PENSION SCHEME VALUATIONS
LGPS actuarial assumptions

Northamptonshire Pensions Fund
Contents

Overview

Introduction

The assumptions feeding through into the LGPS assumptions
are based on market conditions and therefore should not have
significant variations across entities with similar year ends
(subject to changes in scheme durations and scheme specific
variations).

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Accounting policies
Pension scheme valuations
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Matters requiring additional
consideration (2)
Unadjusted disclosure omissions
and improvements
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

Derbyshire Pensions Fund

These assumptions are ultimately the responsibility of the
Board but should be set based upon advice given by an
actuary.
Discussion
In the management representation letter we request that you
confirm to us that the valuation of the pension liability is
calculated with reference to market levels and the most
relevant demographic and financial assumptions at 31 March
2020.
To support your assessment of whether such a representation
to us is appropriate, we provide an indication of minimum,
maximum and most common key actuarial assumptions that we
have seen from a sample of valuations chosen from a crosssection of our client base (preparing accounts at 31 March
2020) and the position of Futures Housing Group within the
ranges.
This information, taken together with your own understanding
of the employee and scheme beneficiary profile for the group,
can be used to highlight possible instances in which a chosen
assumption may deviate significantly from what might be
appropriate for your organisation.
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MATTERS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION

Contents

Fraud

Related parties

Introduction

Whilst the directors have ultimate responsibility for prevention and
detection of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, including those
arising as a result of fraud. Our audit procedures did not identify any fraud.
You have confirmed that you are not aware of any known, suspected or
alleged frauds since we last enquired when presenting the audit plan on 30
March 2020.

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related
party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to
consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may
present greater risk for management override or concealment or fraud.

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices

We did not identify and significant matters in connection with related
parties.

Accounting policies
Pension scheme valuations
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Matters requiring additional
consideration (2)
Unadjusted disclosure omissions
and improvements
Control environment

Laws and regulations
The most significant consideration(s) for your business are Companies Act
2006, Corporate and VAT legislation, Employment Taxes, Health and Safety
and the Bribery Act 2010. We made enquiries of management and reviewed
correspondence with the relevant authorities.

Internal audit
We reviewed the audit work of the Group’s internal audit function to assist
our risk scoping at the planning stage.
We did not identify any significant matters that would affect our planned
audit approach.

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations that could
have a material impact on the financial statements.

Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

Futures Housing Group | Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

18 | BDO LLP

MATTERS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION (2)

Contents

Group matters

Introduction

Following our audit work on the subsidiary entities we can confirm:

Executive summary

•

There were no limitations on the audit where information was restricted

Audit risks

•

We did not identify any fraud at a component level.

Audit risks
Accounting practices
Accounting policies
Pension scheme valuations
Matters requiring additional
consideration
Matters requiring additional
consideration (2)
Unadjusted disclosure omissions
and improvements
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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UNADJUSTED DISCLOSURE OMISSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS
Disclosure omissions and improvements

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Accounting policies
Pension scheme valuations

We are required to bring to your attention other financial reporting matters
that the Audit Committee is required to consider.
The following are the most significant adjusted disclosure matters that
were noted:
•

Disclosure of capital commitments were understated

•

Unit numbers included in the front end narrative did not agree to the
notes to the financial statements

All narrative matters noted above have been adjusted in the latest financial
statements

Matters requiring additional
consideration
Matters requiring additional
consideration (2)
Unadjusted disclosure omissions
and improvements
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Appendices contents
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CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Control environment
Control environment: Significant
deficiencies
Control environment: Follow up
of prior year deficiencies
Audit Report
Independence and fees

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT: SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

We are required to report to you, in writing, significant deficiencies in
internal control that we have identified during the audit. These matters are
limited to those which we have concluded are of sufficient importance to
merit being reported to the Audit Committee.
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the Group’s
financial statements, you will appreciate that our audit cannot necessarily
be expected to disclose all matters that may be of interest to you and, as a
result, the matters reported may not be the only ones which exist.
As part of our work, we considered internal control relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to design
appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
We have not identified any new significant deficiencies within the internal
control environment; an update on prior year points is provided on the
subsequent pages.

Appendices contents
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CONTROL ENVIRONMENT: FOLLOW UP OF PRIOR YEAR DEFICIENCIES

Contents

Area

Issue and impact

Original recommendation

Progress

Management response

User Access
– Open
accounts

The Head of Financial Accounting has administrator
rights and the ability to set up new users within
Open Accounts. This is a potential segregation of
duties risk, for example, allowing users with such
privileges to create and approve fictitious user
accounts used to create transactions.

We recommend that
• administration rights be
reassigned or that an
independent review of
administration activity (such
as activity logs) is undertaken
regularly
• formal review process be
introduced to document user
permission requests.

Complete

This user changes audit report is
run off on a regular basis and
reviewed by the FD

Complete

A staff list is auto-generated
from the HR system and this is
then automatically compared to
the active Orchard users that are
configured on the system. This
automation enables appropriate
changes to be made as a result
of staffing changes (e.g. a staff
member leaves which results in
the ICT team removing their
account and access to Orchard).

Complete

Shared generic accounts are not
used and all administrative tasks
are undertaken using a specific,
individual, auditable admin
account.

Introduction
Executive summary

The Group currently operates an informal process of
adding new users to Open Accounts. The process
involves an email being sent to the Head of Financial
Accounting who consequently adds the user to the
application; no formal ticket or other record is
retained. The lack of robust and well-documented
process of adding new users can potentially create a
risk that newly added users are not assigned with
appropriate permissions within the system.

Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Control environment
Control environment: Significant
deficiencies
Control environment: Follow up
of prior year deficiencies
Audit Report
Independence and fees

User Access
reviews Orchard

Appendices contents

No formal policy of regular user access reviews has
We recommend the
been noted. This means that if the line manager or
implementation of a formal
HR do not send out the leaver notification, there is a policy of regular user access
possible risk that the leaver's access will not be
reviews for the Orchard system.
removed in time.
Removal of leaver accounts not performed on a
timely basis creates the risk that the user has access
to key applications and functionality beyond their
leave date.

Use of
Generic
Accounts Orchard

Two generic accounts (ORCHARDDW and
ORCHARDDDH), that are shared between all system
admins, have been identified. The accounts have the
ability to modify objects in the application.
The use of shared, generically named or temporary
accounts with high levels of access
permission/privilege increases the risk of
unaccountability of users using the generic account.
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We recommend that shared
access to these generic accounts
is stopped. If additional accounts
are required then new access
rights should be created so that
an audit trail of individual
activity is available.
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AUDIT REPORT

AUDIT REPORT OVERVIEW

Contents

Opinion on financial statements

Introduction

We anticipate issuing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements, a
copy of which is included in the appendices on page 29.

Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Control environment
Audit Report
Audit report overview
Independence and fees
Appendices contents

There are no matters that we wish to draw attention to by way of
‘emphasis of matter’.
Going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the board’s assessment of the
applicability of the going concern basis of accounting or the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements.

Comments on the strategic report and the board report and statutory
other information
•

We have identified no material misstatements in the statutory other
information accompanying the financial statements.

Other information
We have reviewed the other information accompanying the financial
statements in the Group’s annual report. We have not identified any
material misstatements that would need to be referred to in our report.

There are no material uncertainties in relation to going concern disclosed in
the financial statements or of which we are aware that we need to draw
attention to in our report.
Key Audit Matters
Key Audit Matters are identified on pages 6 to 12 of this report.
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INDEPENDENCE AND FEES

Contents
Introduction
Executive summary
Audit risks
Audit risks
Accounting practices
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees
Independence
Fees
Appendices contents

INDEPENDENCE

Under ISAs (UK) and the
FRC’s Ethical Standard
we are required, as
auditors, to confirm
our independence.

Under ISAs (UK) and the FRC’s Ethical Standard, we are
required as auditors to confirm our independence and
discuss with you any independence issues including
threats to our independence and the safeguards
applied to mitigate them.
We have embedded the requirements of the Standards
in our methodologies, tools and internal training
programmes. Our internal procedures require that
audit engagement partners are made aware of any
matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on
the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm,
the members of the engagement team or others who
are in a position to influence the outcome of the
engagement. This document considers such matters in
the context of our audit for the year ended 31 March
2020.
Details of services, other than audit, provided by us to
the Group during the period and up to the date of this
report are set out in the appendices. We understand
that the provision of these services was approved by
the Audit Committee in advance in accordance with
the Group’s policy on this matter.
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Details of rotation arrangements for key members of
the audit team and others involved in the engagement
were provided in our planning report.
Details of other threats and safeguards applied are
given in the appendices.
We have not identified any other relationships or
threats that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
objectivity and independence.
We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and
other partners, directors, senior managers and
managers conducting the audit comply with relevant
ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard or the IESBA Code of Ethics as appropriate
and are independent of the Group.
We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation of
independence from non BDO auditors and external
audit experts involved in the audit comply with
relevant ethical requirements including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard and are independent of the
Association and the Group.
Should you have any comments or queries regarding
any independence matters we would welcome their
discussion in more detail.
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FEES

Contents

Fees summary for year ended 31 March 2020

Introduction

£’000

Executive summary
Audit risks

Audit fee for period ending 31 March 2020

Audit risks

•

Consolidated Group and subsidiaries financial
statements

90,000

•

Additional costs incurred in assessing going concern
(note 1)

12,500

Accounting practices
Control environment
Audit Report
Independence and fees

Total audit fees

Independence

Total non-audit services

Fees
Appendices contents

Total fees

£’000

102,500
2,300
104,800

Note 1. As noted on page 10 and in our interim report due to the Covid19 there has been a change in scope to the audit with additional work
required on changes to the control environment and going concern with
an estimated cost of £10k - £15k. We have concluded the work and have
agreed a fee of £12,500 as noted in the above table.
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OUTSTANDING MATTERS

We have now completed our audit work in respect of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and all outstanding matters
have been resolved.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
Responsibilities and reporting

Contents

Our responsibilities and reporting

Appendices contents

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on
Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your consolidated and
company financial statements. We report our opinion on the financial
statements to the Board.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Annual Report
such as the additional narrative reports. We will consider whether there is a
material inconsistency between the other information and the financial
statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the
audit.
For statutory other information such as the strategic report (including the
Section 172 Statement) and the Directors report (including the Statement of
Corporate Governance Arrangements), we will form an opinion on whether
the information given in the other information is consistent with the
financial statements and our knowledge obtained in the audit and whether
the reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
What we don’t report
Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the
Audit Committee and cannot be expected to identify all matters that may be
of interest to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be the only
ones which exist.

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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ADDITIONAL MATTERS WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT

Contents
Appendices contents

Issue

Comments

1

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit.

‘No exceptions to note’.

2

Written representations which we seek.

We enclose a copy of our draft representation letter.

3

Any fraud or suspected fraud issues.

‘No exceptions to note’.

4

Any suspected non-compliance with laws or regulations.

‘No exceptions to note’.

5

Significant matters in connection with related parties.

‘No exceptions to note’.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality

Group matters

Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

6

Limitations on the audit where information was restricted.

‘No exceptions to note’.

8

Any fraud or suspected fraud at group or component level.

‘No exceptions to note’.

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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AUDIT REPORT
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Contents
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF FUTURES HOUSING
GROUP LIMITED

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Futures Housing Group Limited
(“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of changes in Reserves, Statement of Financial Position and
Statement of Cash flows, and the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
•

the board members use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
the board members have not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Group or Parent Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In our opinion:
•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of
the Group’s and the Parent Company’s incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

•

Latest regulatory developments
(3)

•

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

Key Audit Matters

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing
2019.

LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)

Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter
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Carrying amount of properties developed for resale

Outstanding matters

As explained in note 18, properties developed for sale, including shared
ownership first tranches and properties developed for outright sale, are
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value resulting in an
amount recognised in the balance sheet of £6,435,000. For completed
properties at the balance sheet date, an assessment is needed of an
anticipated selling price. For properties in development at the balance sheet
date, an assessment is needed of an anticipated selling price and a
determination of the expected costs to complete.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates

Due to the level of judgement involved in estimating both selling price and
costs to complete we considered there to be a significant risk that the
carrying amount of properties developed for sale is misstated and was
therefore a key audit matter.
Our response to the key audit matter
Having obtained management’s assessment of the net realisable value of
properties developed for sale, we tested this on a sample basis.
Our samples were chosen from the populations of items that represented
both developments under construction as well as completed developments at
year-end.
For a sample of completed properties we agreed the amounts involved to
supporting documentation where the property was sold post year-end. Where
the property was not yet sold we obtained third-party housing market
information to confirm that properties were held at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
For a sample of properties under development we obtained details of the
expected costs to complete from the scheme budget for that development
and agreed the budgeted contracted cost of the development to the latest
contract documentation. We examined supporting documentation for
anticipated sales proceeds and we compared the incurred expenditure to the
balance sheet date to the estimated amount at that date.
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We also assessed the accuracy of cost forecasting by looking at outturn costs
compared to budget on schemes that completed in the year.
Key observations
Our work identified no misstatements or inappropriate application of
judgement or estimation. Based on our procedures we noted no exceptions
and no evidence that the carrying amount of properties developed for sale is
materially misstated.
Going concern
As disclosed in note 2, following the outbreak of COVID-19, and the resultant
impact on the overall economy, management has considered the
appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation for the group as
well as the parent association
The directors’ assessment of going concern involves a number of subjective
judgements including the anticipated future levels of bad debts, voids, the
rate of inflation, costs of borrowing and the level of property sales, which
have been impacted by the current COVID-19 pandemic. We have therefore
spent significant audit effort in assessing the appropriateness of the
assumptions involved and to ensure the adequacy of the disclosure in the
accounting policy in relation to the steps undertaken by the board to gain
assurance that there is not a material uncertainty around the adoption of
the going concern basis of preparing the financial statements. Therefore this
area was identified as a Key Audit Matter.
Our response to the key audit matter
Our audit work included the following:
•

Assessment of the internal forecasting process to confirm the projections
are prepared by appropriate personnel that are aware of the detailed
figures in the forecast but also to have a high level understanding of the
entity’s market, strategy and profile in the customer base, and the
potential impact that COVID-19 might have on these projections.
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Contents

•
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Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities

Obtaining details, and assessing the availability, of financing facilities,
including the nature of facilities, repayment terms and financial
covenants. We considered management’s financial covenant compliance
calculations through to March 2022 and concluded on the consistency of
such calculations with the ratios stated in the relevant lender
agreements.
Consideration of the forecasts prepared by management and challenge of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business.

Additional matters we are
required to report

•

Audit report

As referred to in basis of preparation note, management has modelled
reasonably possible downside scenarios to incorporate the expected impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic. We have considered the appropriateness of the
downside scenarios in respect of the impact of COVID-19 and challenged
management to confirm that they have suitably addressed the inputs, which
are most susceptible to change, including those in respect of revenue,
margins and cost savings. In assessing managements stress testing we
considered whether there were other possible reasonable scenarios that
management should have considered including benchmarking against our
expectations of the sector.

Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)

We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements,
including the results of reverse stress testing and managements conclusions
on the likelihood of such scenarios arising, against the requirements of the
accounting standards and consistency of the disclosure against the forecasts
and stress test scenario.

Latest regulatory developments
(3)

Key observations

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon

With regard to going concern, our key observations are set out in the
conclusions related to going concern section of our audit report.

Audit Committee Guidance

Our application of materiality

Other updates

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our
audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider
materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including
omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that
are taken on the basis of the financial statements. Importantly,
misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as

Other updates
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immaterial as we also take into account of the nature of identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when
evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.
We determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole to be
£4,500,000 (2019 - £3,766,000) which represents 1.25% of total assets (2019 –
1.25% of total assets).
We also apply a specific materiality level for all items comprising operating
profit (including related disclosures) as that term is defined for the purposes
of the entities’ lending covenants. This therefore involves adjusting
operating profit for depreciation, amortisation and impairment. The specific
materiality level that we applied was £1,250,000 (2019 - £957,000), which is
6.25% of adjusted operating profit (2019 – 5.0%).
We used total assets and adjusted operating profit as our chosen benchmarks
to determine materiality and for specific materiality as these are considered
to be the areas of the financial statements of greatest interest to the
principal users of the financial statements and the areas which will have
greatest impact on investor and lender decisions.
Materiality for the parent company was set at £185,000 (2019 - £178,000).
Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual
account or balance level set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low
level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
Performance materiality was set at 70% (2019 – 65%) of materiality or
specific materiality depending on the financial statement area being
audited. We considered a number of factors including the expected total
value of known and likely misstatements (based on past experience and
other factors) and management’s attitude towards proposed adjustments.
We agreed with the Audit and Risk Management Committee that
misstatements in excess of £90,000 (2019 - £183,300) for areas considered
using financial statement materiality and £25,000 (2019 - £47,850) for areas
considered using specific materiality, which were identified during the audit,
would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our
view must be reported on qualitative grounds.
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An overview of the scope of our audit
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We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work
to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking
into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
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In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we assessed the
audit significance of each reporting component in the Group by reference to
both its financial significance and other indicators of audit risk, such as the
complexity of operations and the degree of estimation and judgement in the
financial results.
Extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud
The extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities is
affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the
effectiveness of the entity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of
the audit procedures performed. Irregularities that result from fraud usually
are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that result from
error.
As part of the audit we gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates,
and considered the risk of acts by the Group that were contrary to
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We considered the
Company’s compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the financial statements such as the Companies act 2006 (and related
Directions and regulations), the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and
other laws and regulations applicable to a registered social housing provider
in England. We also considered the risks of non-compliance with the other
requirements imposed by the Regulator of Social Housing, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
group financial statements.
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We designed audit procedures at Group and significant component level to
respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
Our tests included agreeing the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supporting documentation, enquiries of the Board and of management and
enquiries of third parties, where information from that third party has been
used by the Association in the preparation of the financial statements.
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
we would become aware of it. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including testing journals
and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Board that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
Classification of components
The significant components for group purposes were the parent entity,
Futures Homeway Limited, Futures Homescape Limited, Futures Treasury
PLC, Futures Finance Limited and Limehouse Developments Limited.
Audit work on all components was performed by BDO UK both for the
purposes of reporting on the individual financial statements and for
Group/consolidation purposes. Individual component audits were carried out
using component materiality levels appropriate to each individual entity and
the materiality levels used ranged from 1% to 100% of overall financial
statement materiality.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
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The Board is responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent
Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Board.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
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Audit report
Letter of representation
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information including the Strategic report including
Operating and Financial Review and Statement of Corporate Governance
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact.

Other updates

•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

•

the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of board trustees’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the board

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

As explained more fully in the Responsibility of Board, the board members
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•

the information given in the Report of the Board for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

•

the Report of the Board have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

Other updates
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In preparing the financial statements, the board members are responsible for
assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part
of our auditor’s report.

Kyla Bellingall (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, UK

FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
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Latest regulatory developments
(2)
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Other matters
Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, we were appointed by the Board in March 2019 to audit the
Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019 and subsequent
financial periods. In respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 we were
reappointed as auditors by members of the Board at the annual general
meeting held on XX. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 2
years covering the year to 31 March 2020.

Date:

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
(with registered number OC305127).

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group or the parent Association and we remain independent
of the Group and parent Association in conducting our audit.
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit and
Risk Management Committee.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
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Opinion

Outstanding matters

Representative letter 2

We have audited the financial statements of Futures Treasury PLC (“the
Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Reserves, Statement of
Financial Position and the notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

Tax implications of Covid-19

In our opinion:

Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the Company’s profit for
the year then ended;

•

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

•

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
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Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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•

the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

•

the Board have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter
Going Concern and recoverability of related party debt
As the entity on-lends to the other group entities, the principle risk facing
the entity is that the group will be unable to make interest or principal
payments when they fall due this arises from the recoverability of the
balances on lent to the group and therefore this impacts on the entity’s
ability to service its debt and to conclude that it is a going concern.
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We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements,
including the results of reverse stress testing and managements conclusions
on the likelihood of such scenarios arising, against the requirements of the
accounting standards and consistency of the disclosure against the forecasts
and stress test scenario.

Letter of representation

As disclosed in note 2, following the outbreak of COVID-19, and the resultant
impact on the overall economy, the directors have considered the
appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation for the entity by
direct reference to their consideration of the ability of the group to make
interest payments. They have assessed that there are no factors or events
that may cast doubt on the ability to recover related party debt and
therefore to continue to operate for the foreseeable future. The assessment
of the recoverability of the related party debt involves a number of
subjective judgements including rent collection, which have been impacted
by the current COVID-19 pandemic. We have therefore spent significant audit
effort in assessing the appropriateness of the assumptions involved, and as
such this has been identified as a Key Audit Matter.

Representative letter 2

Our response to the key audit matter

Our application of materiality

Tax implications of Covid-19

We assessed management’s review of the recoverability of related party
debt including their review of the parent entity’s assessment of its going
concern status.

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our
audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider
materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including
omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that
are taken on the basis of the financial statements. Importantly,
misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as
immaterial as we also take into account of the nature of identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when
evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.
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Audit report
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We have reviewed the longer term forecasts in order to ascertain if there are
any threats to the recoverability or potential impairment to the
intercompany balances.
This incorporated consideration of the forecasts prepared by management
and challenge of the key assumptions based on our knowledge of that
business, including availability of financing facilities and covenant
compliance calculations.
We have considered the appropriateness of the downside scenarios in respect
of the impact of COVID-19 and challenged management to confirm that they
have suitably addressed the inputs, which are most susceptible to change,
including those in respect of revenue, margins and cost savings. In assessing
managements stress testing we considered whether there were other
possible reasonable scenarios that management should have considered
including benchmarking against our expectations of the sector.
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Key observations
With regards recoverability of intercompany debt, we noted no material
exceptions through performing these procedures.
With regard to going concern, our key observations are set out in the
conclusions related to going concern section of our audit report.

We determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole to be
£1,860,000 (2019 - £1,876,000) which represents 1.25% of total assets (2019 –
1.25% of total assets).
We used total assets as our chosen benchmark to determine materiality as
this is considered to be the areas of the financial statements of greatest
interest to the principal users of the financial statements and the areas
which will have greatest impact on investor and lender decisions.
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Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the individual
account or balance level set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low
level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
Performance materiality was set at 70% (2019 – 65%) of materiality or
specific materiality depending on the financial statement area being
audited. We considered a number of factors including the expected total
value of known and likely misstatements (based on past experience and
other factors) and management’s attitude towards proposed adjustments.

Representative letter 2

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Management Committee that
misstatements in excess of £37,000 (2019 - £93,800) which were identified
during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller
misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.

Tax implications of Covid-19

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work
to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking
into account the geographic structure of the Company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates.

Audit quality
Letter of representation

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon

Extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud
The extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities is
affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the
effectiveness of the entity’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of
the audit procedures performed. Irregularities that result from fraud usually
are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that result from
error.

As part of the audit we gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the Company and the industry in which it operates,
and considered the risk of acts by the Company that were contrary to
applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We considered the
Company’s compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the financial statements.
We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising that the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the
risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.
Our tests included agreeing the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supporting documentation, enquiries of the Board and of management.
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
we would become aware of it. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including testing journals
and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Board that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
Other information
The Board is responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information including the Strategic report including
Operating and Financial Review and Statement of Corporate Governance
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact.

Letter of representation

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Representative letter 2

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•

the information given in the Report of the Board for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS

•

the Report of the Board have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Latest regulatory developments
(2)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Latest regulatory developments
(3)

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in the Report of the Board.

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;

Other updates

•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

•

the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

Other updates
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•

certain disclosures of board trustees’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit.

Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the Responsibility of Board, the board members
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board members are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part
of our auditor’s report.
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For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, UK
[Insert Date]

Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

Kyla Bellingall (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Other matters
Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, we were appointed by the Board in March 2019 to audit the
Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2019 and subsequent
financial periods. In respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 we were
reappointed as auditors by members of the Board at the annual general
meeting held on XX. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 2
years covering the year to 31 March 2020.

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
(with registered number OC305127).

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Company and we remain independent of the Company in
conducting our audit.
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit and
Risk Management Committee.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Other updates
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BDO is totally committed to audit quality
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It is a standing item on the agenda of BDO’s Leadership Team who, in
conjunction with the Audit Stream Executive (which works to implement
strategy and deliver on the audit stream’s objectives), monitor the actions
required to maintain a high level of audit quality within the audit stream and
address findings from external and internal inspections.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

BDO welcomes feedback from external bodies and is committed to
implementing a necessary actions to address their findings.

Audit report

We recognise the importance of continually seeking to improve audit quality
and enhancing certain areas. Alongside reviews from a number of external
reviewers, the AQR (the Financial Reporting Council’s Audit Quality Review
team), QAD (the ICAEW Quality Assurance Department) and the PCAOB
(Public Company Accounting Oversight Board who oversee the audits of US
companies), the firm undertakes a thorough annual internal Audit Quality
Assurance Review and as member firm of the BDO International network we
are also subject to a quality review visit every three years.

Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)

We have also implemented additional quality control review processes for all
listed and public interest audits.

FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS

More details can be found in our Transparency Report at www.bdo.co.uk

Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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Dear Madams/Sirs

Laws and regulations

Financial Statements of Futures Housing Group for the period ended 31
March 2020.

In relation to those laws and regulations which provide the legal framework
within which our business is conducted and which are central to our ability to
conduct our business, we have disclosed to you all instances of possible noncompliance of which we are aware and all actual or contingent consequences
arising from such instances of non-compliance.

We confirm that the following representations given to you in connection
with your audit of the consolidated and parent company’s financial
statements (together the “financial statements”) for the year ended 31
March 2020 are made to the best of our knowledge and belief, and after
having made appropriate enquiries of other directors and officials of the
company and other group companies as appropriate.
We have fulfilled our responsibilities as directors for the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated and parent financial statements as set out
in the terms of the audit engagement letter, and in particular that the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
group and company as at 31 March 2020 and of the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable
financial reporting framework and for making accurate representations to
you.
We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity
from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. In
addition, all the accounting records have been made available to you for the
purpose of your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the group and
company have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting
records. All other records and related information, including minutes of all
meetings of management and non-executives have been made available to
you.
Going concern
We have made an assessment of the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the
date on which the financial statements were approved for release. As a
result of our assessment we consider that the group and company are able
to continue to operate as a going concern and that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
In making our assessment we did not consider there to be any material
uncertainty relating to events or conditions that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Post balance sheet events
Other than as disclosed in note xx to the financial statements there have
been no events since the balance sheet date which either require changes to
be made to the figures included in the financial statements or to be disclosed
by way of a note. Should any material events of this type occur, we will
advise you accordingly.
Fraud and error
We are responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control, to, among other things, help
assure the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and preventing and detecting fraud
and error.
We have considered the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated due to fraud and have identified no significant risks.
To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any fraud or suspected
fraud involving management or employees. Additionally, we are not aware of
any fraud or suspected fraud involving any other party that could materially
affect the financial statements.
To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any allegations of fraud or
suspected fraud affecting the financial statements that have been
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or any
other party.
Misstatements
You have not advised us of any unadjusted misstatements in the financial
statements or other information in the annual report.

REPRESENTATIVE LETTER 2

Related party transactions

Contents
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Audit report
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We have disclosed to you the identity of all related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. We
have appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the applicable
accounting framework.
There were no loans, transactions or arrangements between the group, the
Company and its directors and their connected persons at any time in the
year which were required to be disclosed.
Carrying value and classification of assets and liabilities
We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value
or classification of assets or liabilities reflected in the consolidated and
parent financial statements.

Letter of representation

Accounting estimates

Representative letter 2

None of the Company’s current asset properties for sale or work in progress
balances are stated in the balance sheet at 31 March 2020 at an amount
exceeding their recoverable amount.

Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates

We confirm that the balance sheet amount of £6 million carried within
current asset properties developed for sale, representing the cost
apportioned to first tranche shared ownership properties, properly
represents the proportion of the total cost we believe will be marketed and
sold after the balance sheet date based on our knowledge of these
developments and market conditions.
We confirm that none of the group or Company’s assets are stated in the
balance sheet at 31 March 2020 at an amount exceeding their recoverable
amount as defined in FRS102 Section 27 – Impairment of assets.
All housing properties are in existence and beneficially owned by the group.
Title deeds are held by mortgagees, local authorities or solicitors as security
for specific charges against the properties, in respect of housing loans
outstanding at the balance sheet date, where appropriate.
We confirm that the bad debt provision of 100% of former tenants and
varying % of current tenants is appropriate based on receipts during the
current year.
We confirm that cash flow forecasts used in our assessment of going concern
are based on our best estimate of committed development costs, loan
drawings and related interest charges and overheads adjusted for inflation.

We confirm that the valuation of the pension liability is calculated with
reference to market levels and the most relevant demographic and financial
assumptions at 31 March 2020.
We have disclosed all known actual or possible cross guarantees between
entities in the group and Company with third parties and in particular any
such guarantees between regulated and non-regulated entities.
Litigation and claims
We have disclosed all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements and
these have been disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting
standards.
Confirmation
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of
enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience
(and, where appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation)
sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above
representations to you.
We confirm that the financial statements are free of material misstatements,
including omissions.
We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information
to you as auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no
relevant audit information needed by you in connection with preparing your
audit report of which you are unaware. Each director has taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that you are aware
of that information.

Yours faithfully

(Signed on behalf of the board of directors)

TAX IMPLICATIONS OF
COVID-19

TAX IMPLICATIONS OF COVID-19

Outstanding matters

We are seeing various issues begin to arise from COVID-19 that can have an impact on both the Corporation Tax and VAT position of housing groups – in
particular, change of tenure and payment of accrued qualifying charitable donations by subsidiaries that have fallen into negative reserves. We have outlined
below some of the key areas for consideration and our interpretation of the impact at 22 April 2020. As with all things COVID-19 related, this is a fast moving
area, so this article will be updated online as relevant guidance, experience and best practice emerges.

Our responsibilities

https://www.bdo.co.uk/en-gb/insights/industries/not-for-profit/tax-implications-of-covid-19-for-social-housing
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Audit report
Audit quality

AREA

ISSUE

TAX IMPLICATION

Change of
tenure

As a result of the slow
house sale conditions
caused by COVID-19,
many housing associations
are considering switching
developed properties
from ‘sale’ to ‘rent’ in
order to improve cashflow
in the short-to-medium
term.

There are potential Corporation Tax issues arising from the appropriation of properties to/from stock and
from the sale of properties to subsidiaries, all of which can constitute chargeable disposals and may
therefore give rise to a Corporation Tax liability.

Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard

Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates

the point at which the intention to change tenure crystallised

•

the values at which properties to be transferred within the group are to pass.

This can result in the repayment of some, or all, of input tax previously recovered and will need to be
considered and quantified as part of the business case.

Latest regulatory developments
(2)

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon

•

For VAT purposes, the change from outright sale to rent is a change from a taxable intention to an exempt
one.

LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS

Latest regulatory developments
(3)

Where a change of tenure and/or transfer of properties to a subsidiary is being considered,
contemporaneous documentation evidencing the following will be of the utmost importance in order to
defend against potential challenges from HMRC:

Losses

Managing losses in
charitable groups can give
rise to a number of
Corporation Tax issues if
not handled correctly.

Where losses are surrendered for group relief without payment, a mismatch between accounting and tax
losses may result. This can have an impact on future qualifying charitable donations (QCDs), and may
ultimately mean that subsidiaries are unable to fully offset the taxable profits of future periods by way of
donation.
Where one subsidiary surrenders losses to another on a £-for-£ basis, any excess over and above the tax
value of the surrendered loss may be viewed as a distribution to the parent - meaning that sufficient
distributable reserves will need to be available to fund the payment.

Other updates
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TAX IMPLICATIONS OF COVID-19 (2)

Contents

AREA

ISSUE

TAX IMPLICATION

Appendices contents

Funding of
subsidiaries

Some commercial subsidiaries of housing
associations are seeing a fall in profits, so
additional funding is being provided by the
parent association.

Funding of troubled subsidiaries by a charitable parent – whether via loan or share
issue – must be considered carefully in the context of the approved charitable
investment (ACI) rules.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality

Extra care should be taken over amounts owed by subsidiaries to their parents in
respect of existing debts, management fees or services provided. Where these
amounts remain unpaid over long periods of time, HMRC may take the view that they
are in effect investments in the subsidiary, therefore, subject to the ACI rules.

Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

Payment of
QCDs

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
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Any investment in a subsidiary that is not made on commercial terms and/or does not
generate an acceptable financial return for the charity risks failing to qualify as an
ACI. In which case, the charity will suffer a Corporation Tax liability on an amount of
otherwise exempt income, equal to the amount of the investment.

Corporate
Interest
Restriction
(CIR)

100% subsidiaries of charitable housing
associations have nine months following the end
of a given accounting period to donate away
the taxable profits of that accounting period to
their parent. All donations must be made in
cash from available distributable reserves at
the point at which the payment is made (rather
than the balance sheet date).

If, by the time an accrued QCD is paid, the subsidiary has gone into a negative
reserves position, the payment of the QCD could constitute an unlawful distribution.
This would leave the subsidiary unable to donate away its taxable profit for the
preceding accounting period, therefore, unable to mitigate its Corporation Tax
liability for the period.

Some housing associations are considering
taking on additional lending in order to ease
cashflow problems resulting from the impact of
COVID-19. This could potentially increase the
amount of finance interest payable outside the
group, such that the group is brought into the
CIR regime.

Where this is the case, the group will be required to comply with the additional
reporting requirements under CIR and will also be subject to a restriction on the tax
deductions available in respect of its interest payments.

Other updates
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Timing of payments will need to be considered in light of any potential decrease in
the profitability of commercial subsidiaries.

CIR will need to be considered generally where additional external lending is to be
taken on.
It should also be noted that where any lending is capitalised in the group (particularly
on stock), there is the potential for complex interactions between the CIR rules and
other aspects of the UK tax regime.
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VAT
deferral

HMRC have granted an automatic option to
defer payment for VAT that falls due between
20 March and 30 June. The deferred VAT must
be paid by 31 March 2021.

Entities that are in a VAT payment position may want to take advantage of the
deferral opportunity to improve cashflow.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

VAT returns must still be submitted as normal.

Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2

Entities that are in a VAT repayment position should still expect to receive payment
from HMRC as normal, although we recommend submitting the returns as quickly as
possible.

VAT on
abortive
costs

Many housing associations do not have a
standardised procedure in place for treating the
VAT on projects that were stopped before
settling on a firm intention.

Tax implications of Covid-19

If such costs are likely to increase, consideration should be given to deciding on a
treatment.
If the costs are within a design and build subsidiary, consider whether these can be
passed up to the housing association, and what the associated VAT treatment is.

Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
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FRC Ethical Standard
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FRC ETHICAL STANDARD
Issued in December 2019
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In December 2019 the FRC published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 (‘ES’), which is applicable from 15 March 2020. There are some transitionary
provisions for services and arrangements that are not currently prohibited under the existing Standard. The ES aims to further strengthen auditor
independence and enhance confidence in the profession. The table below provides a high level summary of the key headlines.
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Key headlines

Impact

The objective,
reasonable & informed
third party test

Reinforcement that ethical principles take priority over rules. A need to take care where particular facts and circumstances are
either not addressed directly by the rules or might appear to ‘work around’ the rules, or result in an outcome that is
inconsistent with the general principles.

Extra-territorial
impact

For group audits where the audited entity has overseas operations, the ES will require all BDO Member firms to be independent
of the UK audited entity and its UK and overseas affiliates in accordance with the UK Ethical Standard, irrespective of if their
audit work is relied upon.

Contingent fees

Non-audit services with contingent or success-based fee arrangements will be prohibited for audited entities.

Secondments

All secondments/loan staff to audited entities are prohibited with the exception of secondments to public sector entities.

Recruitment and
remuneration services

Prohibition on providing remuneration services to audited entities such as advising on the quantum of the remuneration package
or the measurement criteria for calculation of the package. In addition, the prohibition on providing recruitment services to an
audited entity that would involve the firm taking responsibility for, or advising on the appointment of, any director or employee
of the entity.

Non-audit services to a
public interest entity
(PIE)

Moving to a “white-list” of permitted non-audit services for PIEs. The white-list largely consists of services which are either
audit-related or required by law and/or regulation. The provision of services not on the white-list are prohibited. The ES
separates those permitted services which are exempt from the 70% fee cap and those services which are subject to the fee cap.

Other entities of
public interest (‘OEPI’)

OEPI is a new term in the Ethical Standard. The FRC have imposed the ‘white-list’ applicable to PIE audited entities to also
apply to OEPIs. OEPIs are entities which, according to the FRC, do not meet the definition of a PIE but nevertheless are of
significant public interest to stakeholders. They include AIM listed entities which exceed the threshold to be an SME listed entity
- generally those with a market cap of more than €200m; Lloyd’s syndicates; Private sector pension schemes with more than
10,000 members and more than £1billion of assets; Entities that are subject to the governance requirements of The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 (SI/2018/860), excluding fund management entities which are included within a
private equity or venture capital limited partnership fund structure. These would be entities which:
⎯

Have more than 2000 employees; and / or

⎯

Have a turnover of more than £200 million and a balance sheet total of more than £2 billion.

The FRC have noted that the rules applicable to OEPIs will apply from periods commencing on or after 15 December 2020.
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LATEST REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS
Future of Audit, Regulation and Market Competition
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A number of corporate governance, financial reporting and audit failures since the ‘financial crises’ have led to auditing being the focus of the BEIS Select
Committee and the commissioning of three separate, but related, independent reviews scrutinising audit, auditors and the corporate and audit regulatory
environment. Although these independent reviews started at various times since 2018, none have yet fully concluded upon and further consultations on
precisely what the implementation will look like is expected to take place during 2020. However, that is not to say that changes have not already begun:
There are already a number of changes being made by the market participants themselves such as increased operational separation audit form consulting and
voluntary restriction of non-audit services. The have also been a number of changes arise through regulation such as the further restriction on non-audit
services introduced with the new ethical standard in December 2019. Other expected changes will be implemented via a suite of consultations expected in
2020. Detailed below is a summary of the current reports issued and their status with a summary of the contents.

Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2

Initiative

Timeline 2018

Q1 2019

Q2 2019

BEIS Select Committee

‘Carillion’ report
issued 5/2018

‘Future of audit’
report issued
24/4/2019

Government
response issued
7/6/2019

Competition and Markets
Authority (CMA) Report
‘Statutory Audit Services
Market Study’

Launch of Market
study 9/10/2018

Responses to
consultation
21/1/2019

Report and
recommendations
published 18/4/2019

Team appointed
to undertake
review 2/2019

Consultation ended
7/6/2019

Secretary of State
announces plans
for a new
regulator (ARGA)
11/3/2019

48 recommendations
to be implemented
by FRC

Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard
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‘Report of the Independent
Review in to the quality
and Effectiveness of Audit’
– Sir Donald Brydon
‘Independent Review of
the FRC’ by Sir John
Kingman

Kingman Report
published – 83
recommendations
18/12/2018
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Q3 2019

Q4 2019

Status
It is a priority area for
the Committee which
has a watching brief

First BEIS
consultation on
implementation
ended
13/9/2019

Further consultations
expected in 2020

Brydon
report
issued
9/12/2019

Further consultations
expected in 2020

Further consultations
expected in 2020

BEIS first
implementation
consultation ended
11/6/2019
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Future of Audit, Regulation and Market Competition
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Report

Topic

Key points

‘Independent Review of
the FRC’ by Sir John
Kingman

December 2018 - Future of
regulation and the FRC –
requested by the Secretary
of State

•

Highlighted deficiencies in FRC and its operating effectiveness

•

New regulator to replace FRC ‘Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority’

•

Reconsideration of which entities are classed as ‘public interest’

Appendices contents
Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report

A number of changes require legislation changes but the Financial Reporting Council are
working on implementation where possible.

Audit report
Audit quality

Related BEIS consultation

Letter of representation
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Competition and Markets
Authority (CMA) Report
‘Statutory Audit Services
Market Study’

BEIS consultation independent review of the
FRC - March 2019 –
Recommends adopting a
significant number of the
Kingman proposals without
further consultation ended June 2019

The proposals being classed as:

April 2019 - Future of
market competition

Report 18 April 2019 – suggestions include

•

FRC and BEIS will implement as soon as possible

•

Can be implemented once considered, in advance of legislation

•

Primary legislation required

Further consultations are expected and will form part of the 2020 suite of consultations
undertaken.

•

Increased accountability of audit committees including a focus on how they select
auditors and their consideration of audit quality

•

Mandatory joint audits for largest companies including one member not from the big 4
and peer reviews

•

An operational split between the audit and non audit practices of the big 4

•

A 5 year review of progress by the new regulator

Further consultations are expected and will form part of the 2020 suite of consultations
undertaken.

Other updates
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Report

Topic

Key points

BEIS (Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy
Committee) Report ‘The
Future of Audit’ – 24 April

Consideration of 2 reports
– CMA and Kingman – to
ensure they will lead to
coherent framework

This report considers the CMA and Kingman reports and supports their recommendations
and encourages implementation. In particular:
•

Implement Kingman recommendations as soon as possible

•

Endorsement of CMAs suggestion to split firms operations between audit and nonaudit

•

Segmented market cap and joint audits for FTSE 100

•

Detecting fraud a priority

Representative letter 2

•

Tightening of dividend regime

Tax implications of Covid-19

•

Make audit more forward looking

Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)

•

Welcomes introduction of ARGA – deal with failures more quickly and more
stringently

Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation

Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
FRC Ethical Standard

Published June 2019.
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In December 2019 Sir Donald Brydon published his “Report of the
Independent Review in to the quality and Effectiveness of Audit” . This
report proposes a fundamental changes to the audit profession, the scope of
audit and how the audit committee interacts with auditors and shareholders.
The report introduces over 100 actions in a number of areas including:
•

Audit Purpose, Audit Profession and Auditor reporting

•

Directors’ Reporting

•

Role of Shareholders

•

Other stakeholders

•

Internal Controls

•

Fraud

•

Transparency

•

Technology

FRC Ethical Standard

•

Auditor Liability

LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS

•

Audit and Risk Committees

•

KPIs and APMs (Alternative Performance Measures)

•

ARGA – the new regulator

Additional matters we are
required to report
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Audit quality
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Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)
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Other updates

Replace ‘true and fair’ with ‘present fairly, in all material respects’.

•

Retain binary audit opinion but create continuity between reports,
increase transparency further, have regard to other public information.

•

Report specifically on the directors’ statement in relation to fraud.

•

Audit firms ensure a clear separation between the team which negotiates
the audit fees, and the team which carries out the audit

Key considerations for Audit Committees are as follows:
•

Recommendations for Directors to present to shareholders a three year
audit and assurance policy dealing with auditors appointment, assurance
budget and risks.

•

Directors to present an annual Public Interest Statement and Resilience
Statement (replacing the going concern and viability statements) in the
annual report.

•

Directors to present an annual statement on the actions they have taken
to prevent fraud.

•

CEO and CFO to provide an annual attestation to the board of directors
as to the effectiveness of the company’s internal controls over financial
reporting.

•

Directors be required to disclose when any material failure of their
internal controls has taken place.

•

Any Alternative Performance Measures reported by a company, and any
use of Key Performance Indicators to underpin executive remuneration,
should be subject to audit.

•

Publication by the directors of a risk report in advance of the audit with
Shareholders to be given a formal opportunity to propose matters to be
covered in the audit and also permitted to question the Audit Committee
Chair and the auditor.

Key considerations for Audit Firms :
•

A new definition of audit: “ The purpose of an audit is to help establish
and maintain deserved confidence in a company, in its directors and in
the information for which they have responsibility to report, including
the financial statements.”

•

Recognition of other stakeholders alongside the audit committee

•

Creation of a standalone audit profession as opposed to an extension of
the accounting profession

•

Introduce the need for ‘professional suspicion’ alongside ‘professional
scepticism’.

Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates

•
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FRC PRACTICE AID FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) issued an updated practice aid for
audit committees in December 2019 and a full copy can be found on the FRC
website. In their practice aid the FRC note: ‘The directors of a company (the
Board as a whole) are responsible for ensuring its ﬁnancial statements are
prepared in accordance with the applicable ﬁnancial reporting framework
and for overseeing the company’s internal control framework. A high-quality
audit provides investors and other stakeholders with a high level of assurance
that the ﬁnancial statements of an entity give a true and fair view and
provide a reliable and trustworthy basis for taking decisions.’

It gives guidance for Audit Committees in the following areas:
•

Audit tenders and the tender process including audit fee negotiations and
auditor independence

•

A model for use by audit committees in making an overall assessment of
an external auditor including inputs, evaluations and concluding:
Inputs

The practice aid then discusses how the role of audit committees in serving
the interests of investors and other stakeholders is through their
independent oversight of the annual corporate reporting process including
the audit. The FRC highlight that the responsibility for appointing the
external auditor, approving their remuneration and any non audit services
work, ensuring their independence and challenging them over the quality of
their work falls to the audit committee and can play a key role in facilitating
a high quality audit (see note below).

Evaluation
External
Management
Auditor
Audit committee

Concluding and
reporting
Mindset and
culture
Judgment
Skills,
Character and
Knowledge

FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS

Quality control

Latest regulatory developments
(2)

•

Transparency - reporting to the Board on how the audit committee has
discharged these responsibilities

Latest regulatory developments
(3)

•

Some guidance on key areas of audit judgement

The provision of high quality audits are a key focus of FRC and the new
Executive Director of Supervision, David Rule, sent a letter to all audit firms
in November 2019 explaining the factors he would expect to see in place in
order to facilitate the delivery of high quality audits. A copy of the letter
can be found on the FRC website.

Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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Reverse charge VAT for construction services
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From October 2020, a VAT-registered business, which supplies certain
construction services to another VAT-registered business for onward sale,
will be required to issue a VAT invoice stating that the service is subject to
the domestic reverse charge. However, it is the recipient that must account
for the VAT due on that supply through its VAT return, instead of paying the
VAT amount to the supplier. The recipient may recover that VAT amount as
input tax, subject to the normal rules. These rules apply equally to
charitable entities who are involved in property transactions.
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Where the workers are regarded as ‘deemed employees’ the entity paying
the PSC is required to operate PAYE and NIC (and Apprenticeship Levy if
relevant) when processing payments. Recognising that this is a difficult area
HMRC has published a self help guide and a communications guide.
Social housing providers are reminded that the definition of “turnover”, one
of the three tests to determine the size of an organisation, is intended to
have the same meaning as provided for in the Companies Act (2006). This is
for “turnover” to reflect trading income from which an organisation would
report as a profit or a loss, or income and expenditure.

VAT on electronic publications

Internal audit

Following the 2020 budget, from 1 December, the zero rate of VAT will be
applied to e-publications: e-books, e-newspapers, e-magazines and academic
e-journals will be entitled to the same VAT treatment as their physical
equivalents. Suppliers are expected to pass on the cost saving to their
customers. However, supplies to EU consumers are liable to VAT in the
customer’s country. Until the UK leaves the EU VAT regime, UK suppliers can
use the UK VAT MOSS to account for EU VAT, but after this they will have to
use the VAT MOSS system of another EU country.

A new Code of Practice was issued by the Chartered Institute of Internal
Auditors in January. The Code builds on existing Standards and seeks to
increase the effectiveness of internal audit by clarifying expectations and
requirements. A key development in the consultation phase was the growing
recognition of the need for proportionality. The code is set out over 9
headings, covering such areas as scope, reporting, independence and
relationships with boards and external auditors. This is the first Internal
Audit Code produced for general application for private and third sector
organisations.

Off payroll labour
The changes to the off-payroll rules were due to come into effect on 6 April
2020. This has now been delayed until April 2021 because of the spread of
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
The delay is to help businesses and individuals deal with the economic
impact of COVID-19. The delay to the introduction of the changes is not a
cancellation.
Any entity (aside from those regarded as small) engaging the services of
workers via Personal Service Companies (PSC), or other intermediaries
including partnerships and LLPs, is required to introduce processes for
assessing whether the workers are ‘deemed employees’ and formally notify
the workers of this assessment.
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OTHER UPDATES

OTHER UPDATES (2)

Contents

Revised ISAs - Going Concern

Appendices contents

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has issued a revised going concern
standard in response to recent Enforcement cases and well-publicised
corporate failures where the auditor’s report failed to highlight concerns
about the prospects of entities which collapsed shortly after. The new
standard is effective for audits of financial statements for periods
commencing on or after 15 December 2019.

Outstanding matters
Our responsibilities
Additional matters we are
required to report
Audit report
Audit quality
Letter of representation
Representative letter 2
Tax implications of Covid-19
Tax implications of Covid-19 (2)
Tax implications of Covid-19 (3)

The revised standard (ISA UK 570 Going Concern) follows concerns about the
quality and rigour of audit and increases the work auditors are required to
do when assessing whether an entity is a going concern. It means UK auditors
will follow significantly stronger requirements than those required by current
international standards. The FRC hopes that UK experience will lead to
further strengthening of requirements at the international level.
The revised standard requires:
§

greater work on the part of the auditor to more robustly challenge
management’s assessment of going concern, thoroughly test the
adequacy of the supporting evidence and evaluate the risk of
management bias

§

improved transparency with a new reporting requirement for the auditor
of public interest entities, listed and large private companies to provide
a clear, positive conclusion on whether management’s assessment is
appropriate, and to set out the work they have done in this respect

§

a stand back requirement to consider all of the evidence obtained,
whether corroborative or contradictory, when the auditor draws their
conclusions on going concern.

FRC Ethical Standard
LATEST REGULATORY
DEVELOPMENTS
Latest regulatory developments
(2)
Latest regulatory developments
(3)
Latest Regulatory Developments:
Brydon
Audit Committee Guidance
Other updates
Other updates
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FOR MORE INFORMATION:
Kyla Bellingall
m: 07786 198735
e: kyla.bellingall@bdo.co.uk

The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we
believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record
of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the company and may
not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third
party is accepted.
BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest
accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.
BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and
a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership,
operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both
separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct
investment business.
© September 2020 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.
www.bdo.co.uk

